Haringey Counci NOTICE OF MEETING

Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee

MONDAY, 8TH OCTOBER, 2012 at 19:15 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD
GREEN, N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors Allison, Brabazon, Dogus, Reece, Solomon, Stennett and
Waters (Chair)

AGENDA

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (IF ANY)
2. URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of late items of urgent business. Late items will
be considered under the agenda item they appear. New items will be dealt with at
item 11 below.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the
consideration becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
member’ judgement of the public interest.

4. ACTIONS ARISING FROM THE MEETING WITH ASPIRE



10.

11.

12.

Prior to the start of the meeting, the Committee will have met with Aspire, a youth
led project group of Young people, that are currently in the care of the council .The
young people will have put forward their vision and priorities as a group . As
Corporate parents the committee will agree the actions, arising from this discussion,
to be taken forward by the Children’s Service and monitored by the Committee over
the coming year.

MINUTES (PAGES 1 -4)

To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 04 September 2012.

MATTERS ARISING

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT : CHILDREN AND FAMILIES (PAGES 5 - 28)

This report sets out performance data and trends for an agreed set of measures
relating to looked after children.

ACADEMIC PROGRESS REPORT FOR HARINGEY CHILDREN IN CARE 2012
(PAGES 29 - 36)

Members to consider information on the progress and results for Children in Care at
the end of Reception, Key Stages 1, and 2 and 4.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

That the press and public be excluded from the meeting for consideration of items
10&11 as they contain exempt information as defined in Section 100a of the Local
Government Act 1972 (as amended by Section 12A of the Local Government Act

1985): paras 1 & 2: namely information relating to any individual, and information

likely to reveal the identity of an individual.

ACADEMIC PROGRESS REPORT FOR HARINGEY CHILDREN IN CARE 2012
(PAGES 37 - 40)

The Committee to consider exempt information pertaining to item 8.

PROGRESS REPORT FOLLOWING A RECENT OFSTED INSPECTION OF A
COUNCIL CHILDREN'S HOME (PAGES 41 - 54)

This report sets out the action taken following the recent OFSTED report on a council
children’s home.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS



Date of next meeting 04" December 2012 6.30pm

Joint meeting with Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Practice Committee on 29

October 2012 7.30pm.

David McNulty

Head of Local Democracy and Member Services
5™ Floor

River Park House

225 High Road

Wood Green

London N22 8HQ

Ayshe Simsek

Principal Committee Coordinator

Tel: 0208 489 2929

Fax: 0208 881 5218

Email: ayshe.simsek@haringey.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES

Page 1 Awgrenda ltem 5

OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE

TUESDAY, 4 SEPTEMBER 2012

Councillors

Apologies

Dogus, Egan, Hare, Peacock, Reece, Solomon and Waters (Chair)

Councillor Allison, Brabazon and Stennett.

Also Present: Libby Blake, Attracta Craig, Emma Cummergen, Janice Darling,
Margaret Gallagher, Debbie Haith, Leslie Kettles, Eve Pelekanos,

Wendy Tomlinson.

MINUTE
NO.

SUBJECT/DECISION

ACTION
BY

CPAC172

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (IF ANY)

Apologies for absence were received from Clirs Allison, Brabazon and
Stennett. Clirs Hare, Peacock and Egan respectively attended in their
absence.

CPAC173

MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 17 July 2012 were agreed as an
accurate record of the meeting.

CPAC174

MATTERS ARISING

The Committee were updated that the report requested at the last meeting
on the transition of care leavers would be deferred to the October
Committee meeting and which would permit the inclusion of half year
statistical information to provide greater context to discussions. The report
would also include details of proposals to expand the remit of the virtual
school to provide support for the 16 plus age group.

The Deputy Director provided a short overview of the Council’s approach
to the naturalisation of CiC (Children in Care) following queries raised by
the Committee at the last meeting. Following legal advice, the Council had
adopted an approach to seek to secure a child’s immigration status prior
to them reaching their majority which was in line with other authorities. As
the majority of unaccompanied minors in this cohort had indefinite leave to
remain status anyway, the Council would not routinely actively seek to
support any applications for naturalisation but would consider any
requests on a case by case basis. The overriding premise was that young
people should be encouraged to make their own decision about
naturalisation once they reached their majority in recognition of the
significance of the decision.

Debbie
Haith

Attracta
Craig

CPAC175

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT: CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

The Committee considered a new format performance report centred on
monitoring against an agreed set of measures relating to CiC with




Page 2

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 4 SEPTEMBER 2012

accompanying service and performance comments provided for context. It
was intended that the new format would facilitate the monitoring of long
term trends and benchmarking with other authorities.

It was updated that the number of CiC in Haringey remained on a
downward trajectory although still remained significantly higher than the
statistical neighbour average. The service were continuing efforts to
support this reduction through division of the CiC population into defined
cohorts to allow performance to be examined in greater detail and to
identify any underlying trends or issues.

The Committee queried the process for the setting of Haringey
performance targets and whether in some instances they were
challenging enough, such as the 95% target for CiC visits. Officers
advised that Haringey specific targets were developed based on a series
of principles including performance in the last year and that of statistical
neighbour authorities and the resource provision of the service. A
commitment was however made for a review of these targets by the
CYPS Senior Management Team in conjunction with the Cabinet Member
for Children as part of the transformational journey of the service toward
excellence and determining what an outstanding service would look like.

With regards to the ongoing IT issue that continued to impact on the
performance monitoring of CiC case reviews within required timescales,
efforts were continuing to seek a resolution with the IT system provider. In
the interim, local monitoring arrangements had been put in place. It was
anticipated that an accurate performance figure would be reported to the
next Committee meeting.

With regards to the performance data provided for CiC visits, further
clarification was requested within the comments box of future reports on
the variance in timescales imposed for visits.

The Committee extended their praise for the new format of the
performance report and its ease of reading.

Debbie
Haith

Eve
Peleka
nos

CPAC176

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE FOSTERING SERVICE

The Committee considered the annual performance report on the
fostering service setting out the structure, aims and duties of the service
as well as performance data from the last twelve months.

The Committee expressed concern over the relatively low number of
foster carers recruited from the last publicity campaign. It was confirmed
that although the campaign was on course to meet its target for the
recruitment of 47 new carers over a three year period, the number of
current carers deregistering remained of continuing concern and it was
agreed that the Council needed to be more ambitious with regards to
recruitment. The Committee discussed the inherent difficulties in trying to
achieve a balance between not discouraging prospective carers but also
being upfront about the strict eligibility criteria in place related to the needs




Page 3

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 4 SEPTEMBER 2012

of the child such as restrictions in most instances on carers being in full
time work.

It was advised that in an effort to retain focus on increasing recruitment,
the proposed restructure of the service would facilitate this through
reconfiguring the service into two teams to provide separation between
the two distinct functions of the service: the recruitment and assessment
of carers and supporting foster carers. It was agreed that the Committee
would receive an update report on the restructure and new arrangements
in six months time.

The Committee suggested a number of other avenues that could be
explored by officers to increase recruitment of carers including promotion
at Area Committees, the opportunity for a more targeted approach aimed
at the Turkish community and the feasibility of including fostering
information in the annual Council Tax leaflet sent to borough residents.
The Committee also discussed the approach to promoting the financial
support provided to foster careers, particularly in recognition of the current
economic climate. It was advised that the communications team had
undertaken detailed focus group research for the last recruitment
campaign including the financial inducements for fostering. In
consideration of the findings of this exercise, it had been determined to
provide details of the financial support available within the fostering
adoption leaflet sent out to prospective carers but not on wider publicity
material such as posters.

Janice
Darling

Janice
Darling

CPAC177

DRAFT PERMANENCY POLICY

The Committee considered a draft permanency policy document
developed to steer the securing of permanent care arrangements for CiC,
in particular ensuring permanency planning was considered as soon as
the child was taken into care to facilitate timely and appropriate decision
making. Although the policy would primarily operate as a social work
framework for officers, it would also set out the roles and responsibilities
of Councillors in this regard. In light of this, the Committee at this point
had the opportunity to define the role they wished to take as corporate
parents in this area including providing informed challenge and a local
policy steer required as part of the transition of the service towards
excellence. This would include providing input on significant issues going
forward such as the use of Special Guardianship Orders, trans-racial
adoptions etc. The policy would ultimately be submitted for approval by
Cabinet once the Committee had provided input.

The Committee agreed their input into the policy needed to be considered
a priority going forward for further exploration and as such, it was agreed
that a proposed framework would be circulated proposing a way for the
Committee to provide informed input into the policy and to resolve their
role in this area. The Committee also asked officers to develop a
routemap of a typical child through the care process including key
milestones that should be met, in order to assist Members in developing
their understanding of the process.

Debbie
Haith

Debbie
Haith




Page 4

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 4 SEPTEMBER 2012

CPAC178

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

The press and public were excluded from the meeting for consideration of
the following items as they contained exempt information as defined in
Section 100a of the Local Government Act 1972(as amended by Section
12A of the local Government Act 1985), paras1 & 2, namely information
relating to any individual and information likely to reveal the identity of an
individual.

CPAC179

FOSTERING MARKETING AND RECRUITMENT PLANS

The Committee considered the marketing strategy for the recruitment of
foster carers including underpinning fostering activity plans and marketing
activity plans and associated objectives. The importance of the
collaborative working approach as part of North London Fostering
consortium was emphasised which as well as increasing methods of
public engagement, also provided the opportunity for future benchmarking
of the service.

The Committee noted the strategy and plans.

CPAC180

VERBAL UPDATE ON CHILDREN'S HOMES INSPECTIONS

The Committee received a verbal update on the findings of a recent
Ofsted inspection of the Council’s short stay children’s home. Assurances
were provided that the issues raised did not relate to the safeguarding of
children and that the inspection report and accompanying action plan
would be submitted to a future meeting of the Committee for
consideration. It was also agreed that the Regulation 33 inspection reports
for the home would be regularly reported up to the Committee, with
Members who had previously attended the training invited to take part in
inspections.

Wendy
Tomlin
son

CPAC181

DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING

8 October 2012

Clir Ann Waters

Chair




N Page 5 Agenda ltem 7

=

Haringey
Corporate Parenting Item
Report for: Advisory Committee Number:
08 October 2012 )
Title: Corporate Parenting Performance Assessment- Performance for

the year to August 2012

Report

Authorised by: Debbie Haith/ Eve Pelekanos

Lead Officer: Margaret Gallagher / Adele Cooper

Ward(s) affected: Report for Key/Non Key Decision:

All NA

1. Introduction

This report sets out performance data and trends for an agreed set of measures relating to
looked after children. Section 2 provides an overall assessment of performance in the
service and performance highlights. Appendix 1 provides a series of tables and graphs for
each of these measures, grouped by topic, showing monthly data, performance against
target, long term trends and benchmarking where applicable. It also contains performance
and service comments for each area to provide context.

2. Performance Highlights

= The number of children in care is reducing steadily, down to 548 in August from 574
at the end of March 2012. The 548 includes 28 unaccompanied asylum seeking
children. The trend in London suggests falling numbers but data published by the DfE
recently shows an increase nationally of 2% compared to 2011 and 13% compared to
March 2008. In Haringey there has been a 4.7% reduction compared to March 2011
and an increase of 29% compared to 2008.

= The percentage of up to date children in care visits continues to exceed the 95%
target.

= 16 children were missing from care during the month of August. In most cases we
have contact with the young person.

Page 1 of 2



Page 6

X

.

= Provisional data for the end of August suggests that 93% of children in care cases
were reviewed within required timescales.

= The proportion of children placed in Haringey provision has declined since April
2012 and is at 33% for August, below the 38% target.

= Of the 548 children in care 26% were placed within Haringey, and 74% were placed
outside Haringey. Of the newly looked after children in the month who remained
looked after at the end of the month 2 out of 8 children were placed 20 miles+ from
home.

= Foster care (in house) placements are showing a reducing trend (from 202 in April to
181 in August) although and improvement on previous months figures.

= Indicators around stability of placements are in line with statistical neighbours.

= Performance on care leavers in suitable accommodation and in education,
training and employment (ETE) are below targets set but monthly numbers are small
and should be interpreted with care. For those care leavers who were not in suitable
accommodation or in ETE in August this was due to them being held in custody or non
eligibility as all their rights of appeal had been exhausted or they had no recourse to
public funds.

= There have been 9 adoptions in the year to August, on track to meet target of 15.
There have been 14 special guardianship orders (SGO) compared with 5 at this
time last year.

= The 1 adoption that took place in August took 571 days so the year to date position is
722 days. This is a similar figure to the 2011/12 figure of 715 days but above the 639
day national threshold (for the rolling 3 years 2010-13). The service are looking at
setting targets specific to Haringey taking account of the children already in the system
and the new children coming into the system with an aim to outstrip the 639 day
threshold for new children.

= There are 61 children whose plan for adoption has been approved as at the end of
August, 14 of these have been placed for adoption. If the 14 who have been placed for
adoption are all adopted this year, the average days will fall to 692. Of the 61 children
19 have had the decision that they should be placed, made this year and the average
days looked after for these children as at the 1% September is 450 days (this figure will
continue to accumulate until all these children are placed). For the 19 children (who
are not yet placed) where a decision was made this year, the average days for that
adoption making (ADM) decision to be made is 348.

3. Appendices

= Appendix 1: Performance Analysis and Benchmarking

Page 2 of 2



Page 7

¥4

‘sueaw sidwis sJe Jodau siy) Ul Buptewyousq 10} pepircid sebrlene sy | "ULIOMSPUBA PUE 158104 WEWIBM MBMUINOS ‘WeysiMaT] ‘Yiaquie)
‘uoiBuls| ‘weyng pue ypwsiswuieH ‘Asusoey ‘Yomusaugy ‘uophol) sesuduios pue seoinieg S,usipliyD o} Ajjeoyoads Bunesl uopewiop iudelBowap-0i00s Lo paseqg
pa1siO Aq paulep st dnoib sinogqubien |Bousnels s,Aebule “sinoqybiaN [eonsiels s, Aebuney Jo/pue uopuoT ‘puetbug soy papiaoid s Buptiewyousq ‘ajqepeas DIBUM

"Agspenb payepdn Auo si siy; 1ey] 910U ases|d ‘a1epdn Ausuenb

pleda100s uondopy a3 ‘g xipuaddy 0] Jajas osea|d ‘spjoysaiy) [euoljeu jsuiebe soueuLIopad pue BIEP |eNIX8juoD ‘Buppewyousq ‘eiep puan uusy Buo) sayun) 104
Jaye peyoo] Buiwooeq Jo sUUOW Lz Ly uondope 10} paoe|y serdo
polisd uj psjdope uaip|iyo 10} vondope 10} paoed Buieq o} Js)e pexoo) Bujuiooeq wioy shep afeleny SRFAH

uondope oy peoeld aq pINoYs plIyo ey} 18y uoisiosp Aousbe ue Buimoyioy uondope oy usipyo Jeye pPaxoo) jo sjuswaoeld Jo sseulpwl |

Leedo

siepio dysueipiens jejoads jo togquinN geiy do
suopdope Jo sagunN eglp do

siepio digsuepient ferosds/suondope 10 JBqUINN gip do

S19pIO diysuelpiens jerads pue ucidopy

Bures Jo wewAodute "UoReINPS Ul S19ABs]| S1Rs) eyido
UOHEPOWWIO00. 9iGRINS Uf SI18ABS| 8187 IPido
S19ARS a1BD

juswiaoe|d Jo Lybus| :usIP|Iyo 1al3e Paxoo) o sirewsord Jo AQigeys £9d0
SBACUI JO IaquInu UBIP|IYS 183 PeNooy Jo sjusLaoeid Jo A) 15 2OAH
Slusweoeld Jo AMIqes - uaIpyD Jeyy pa)ooT

~ Se[edsawl Panbal UM PEIMBIAR B13M YOIUM SBSED 8180 ur usipiyo 98EH0
thuouw sy vy Julod Aue je s1e0 Wwoly pepuUodsSaR,/BUSSIL UBIDIIYO JO SBqUInN 6Lt dO

(Ua1piyo o "oN) -pateni) sbupsacold ale) iLpdo

SUSIA 81BD U USIPID zeedo

uoIsirald AeBuyieH Ul paveid usipjiyo 10 8brjusvlay ZEAH

{owoy 18 paoejd Bupniox3) eieo HEUSBQ 9ABY UBIPIIYO SABD ON 2101 540

ueld 4o o3 308fgns Aisnomesd Jaye paxoo] Bujwoseq usipliy) jo sbejusoloy LrdO

LUALOUL B UL} $S8] 10} Jalie Peyoo| Useq PBY OYM JSE PINOO] 89 0} PESEBD OUM DY JO Jaguiny 1StdO
Iy pexoo] 8q o Buiseas uap|yD gipdo

Jsye payoo) Buiwossq uaipiyn Sipdo

dod 000'01 4od 8120 U UBIPIYD JO B1e) By | BEYCAHO

ualpjiyo Bupieas wnjhse psyedwoaseun Bupnjout eeo u ueipy 68540

Aoy pue sswinjop - usipiyg JeRy peyooT

SJUBIU0D
J8HY Pa00T uaipiyD - Bunpewyosusg pue sisAjeuy soueuLiopay

wde LIEDTDNIACHTD

Buisn eousbireiu; ssauisng
pue ABeiens Aq peonpo.y




Page 8

(44

TTTERIES AT T e R e

A
EWZLOZ  ZULLOZ  UOWOZ  OUBO0Z 0001 BISEY
: = - 0 - - g jm]
. P ﬁ 65 95 Sg rs S puerbu3 | M
| Loz i 00001 Jod sy |
- ) e e e = % V¥ SINOQUBIaN (R8RS M
P dod 0000t 1ed ejey| |
09 AsBuniet w
21D J0 PGy
L 08
- 004 _
F 02k
4149

q
‘swioy Je pepienBajes ulews: usip|iyo pue Ajsieudoidde peonpes sie SIequINU ainsue 0} PeIoHUOWS 8¢ O} SBNURUOS SIY 1|
UBUIWIOD BDIAISG

|
i
i -

‘(65) ebelene pueiBuz sy ey Jsybly Apuesyubis pue (LL0zZ Yosep e se 08) eBelene Inoqubleu [eonsnels ey} ueyl seybly surews) siel ey -

"(621) Jeah 1s€] BN SIL1 O} patedwod uononpe. jueoyiubls e ‘uoneindod gop‘o0t tod Z1 | 10 8lel e 0] selenbe Sy} -
“(stouiw pejuediiodoeun Buipn|oxe gzg) 1By Jo Aep 1s®| sy Lo B1LD Ul UBIPID gpg Blem sY| -
JUBWILIOY SSUBLIOUS]
Z1-qe4
I AaBuleny
B8 ) ) ) ) ) ) ‘ apisino paoe(d uaipiun| |
roz . i ? AabBuney
Aup | %9¢ ) i ) } WM paoe|d s sps
Loy -
B4 |z ) an et | e | e | s | ent dod oooo_Mm,me
- 8 - :
D10 Jo sequinN| )
955 \Am@c:m}
L o8 s T =
t 001 e 4 ALK ﬂ——;m .aﬂ-hwsm
Hock dod 000°01 Jod 219 Ul uBIPPYY Jo e1el oyl ®BYSdO M

ua1pjiyo Bunjess wnidse psiuedwoosoeun Buipnjous 1es uy uaIpjiyy  688dO y

(98ed0 ‘61yd0 ‘L1pdO '288d0 ‘ZEAH ‘85rd0) Aunnoe ®oINIBS (P LydO LSpdO ‘9iydO ‘SLbdQ) SOOUBISWINDID
IS4} pue 8.ied JO N0 puE Ul USIP|IYd JO JUSISAOW sy} ‘(esgedo ‘6ged() ales Ul UsJpjiyo jo siequinu sy :sesle Buimoljoy sy Bupsros
WL} 0} pepiroid 821AI8S SU} pUB LI0Y0D 318D Ul usIplIyo Jueno 8yl jo sinjold e epinoid 03 djpy ysjym seinseeul JO s8lBS B sUBLIOD LUoRoes sy

<




T

<

- B : s ?
or 3 s 10N sinoquiien [eoy
622- | ele- glz- | elz- | ©
681 ] %4 4318 802 q
4 : : - / @seauouj JoN Aobuueyy _
$0g- - - - {Buisess) kebuneyy
£l Lig - o o (Buiwiossq) kebuuey
o na n n na o S
e = M i m m m .mn (sah g 15m)|
g SR S puen wies Buoy
© = = 2 8 g

"siequiswu Ajiwiel yum ol| 0} Bupiiniai ee ualp|iyo eyeudosdde aus

UM pue uopdopy pue diysueipsens feioedg se yons siuswebueie m:mo_

Jusuewisd siow 0} Buirow sle Usipiy) ‘sue|d aied Jo usweBeurw

Page 9

Ajpwy e10ul Ut psynses sey swesy yiom [B100S Wiie) Buoj ey i b:_nﬂm“

JUSWIWCT 80IAI8S

®1ep 0 Jevh 8y} Ul usip|Iyo 8z Aq peseslosp sey poyoo eyl -

0} Pesesd sARY LOL PUE 81ep 0} JesA sy} Ul Jsye pexoo; SWI0D9q aARY UBIPIYD £/ -
“I8Y® psX00] &9 0} pasesd z| pue 1snBny uj ieye pexoo; suiBoaq UBIP(IYD || -

“1ele payoo| eq

JUBWUIO) SOUBULIOIS Y

~ ~ § R aseaoe(
. - . = T’. / 8seausou; JoN Aebuuey
€e- 12 el- 0z~ (Butseso) Lebuuey
¥4 St o2 6 (Buiwosen) Aebuyeny
AE ELE ) towouomm
= i i i puen jusoey,
na L] na
1ayye payoo| eq 0} Buisess usippynd

pue

Ieye poyooj Bulwoseq uelpjiyy

91pdo
Sivdo ¥




Page 10

¥e

BA IRy R v

o} dn pue sieidwos se s ejep Bupyrewuyousq 18y} BINSUS 0] Buuueos Juswuonus Jeinbay oxepspun
sousBijjeiu| sseussng pue ABejeng “loreaipu sy 1oj Bupytewayoueq aigeleAe ou Ajusinoe s 818l

e|gissod se ajep

‘usMepspun sue sjuswssssse

ISHYM spewl eq ued sjuswebuele 2jes SAlleuIs)je sieym aied 0) SUOISS{LUP®e WIS] Yoys Jo lequinu sy} DC_O_\_Uw‘_ UO pasnoo) sey eoiales eyl

JUBIWIOY 9dIAIeS

“leaf 1se| pousd swes sy o Ly 0 pa.redwos ‘Jeye peyoo) eq o} Buisesd

o g ©10J2q Yluows e Uy} SS8| IO} JBYE PSYOO| USSq SARY USIP|ILD 6 ‘ayep 0} Jesk sy uj -
| UBWILIOY SoUBULIoSg
“ ; {128k snojpaud)
- £ c 8t et 4 AsbBupeyy
A =2 W
| > e [ >

" g < £ 8 . g g 169\ SN0
; Fot 3 i b = E : BT o TR
| 4] Aluo € 0 ) 0 £ € Aob mM ~

15 ! obu
e1eq } , : I_
Ll -

>

ot §3 | & € e L EZ L F g | (swuow g 1sey),
| - = Ji P 5 5 S O T g _
V L e R

Uiuou! e Uely) ss9) Jo} Joye paxoo| Useq pey oym Jsle paxoo] oq o) peses

e snemactg oot

B r T N T et e oy Ay ey




§¢

B TR S o I SO SRR A

—

Page 11

%0
%S

0} dn pue sjeidwiod se 5| elEp BuEWYOUSY JeL) einsus ©) BUILUBOS JUBWLOHALS J

aissod se syep
enBa. ayelepun

"©J80 Ou| 8Wed Asy; siojeq ue|d uopoeioid e o} 108[gns Buieq 1s|1
ybly e yeys peroadxe sloelpy) SI I ‘BlejeMm S,PJIY B noge sul

" %0} 2ouebijjeiu| ssauisng pue ABeieng oleaipul sity 10 Bupjieluyousq eigeeAR OU AjusinD SEETT)
%St >—CO ~
WMM eleq %0 - - = KabBuieyy _

o m
n | : ™ "
%08 w 2 m i - m 8 w (s1mah g 15m7)
%ge L r =S 2 m_ 5 S puan uue) buoT

- %0 w ~ - =t |

%S —

Ym pepoddns ueeq eney pinom sel|iwey sisyy pue usIpIYo Jo co_toaoa_
9oU00 JuBdHILBIS B8 Biey} v1eYM Soeld U] Ind 8Lk sueld Lopdelold pHYD

TN ZiAen gyeddy

%0L

ueid uonosloid p

‘awoy 1e Aj@inoss pue Ajpjes urews) o} usIpliyo 1o} 8|qgissod jou si

H Usym pesn 8q pinoys swioy Ajjwlel Jjeyl woJy Aeme ua.ippiyo 1o} Bunen
, Juswiwo) adinIeg

“Jeah 1se] %5z woiy dn ‘(Usippyo S9 JO 1IN0 92) %0V SI 2inByY e1ep 0) Jesk 8y

JUSWILIOY) SSUBWIOLS

Ao %S5 %1ie %09 | %0l AaBuueyy
ereq !

e i S & ; o ; i
L T w ,m w m g (Stpious § ssei)
TR ~ [ ~ o ® o - pua1) justey .m

140 01 109lgns Ajsnoneid Jeye paxoo] Buiwooseq usIppy) jo ebejussiey

v1¥dO p

T




Page 12

9¢

_ 0 dn pue sje|dwos sB Sf e1ep PUPLBWLOUSY jBYl 5.NSUS O} Bumiueos Justiuolaue tenbal sxenepun
“ - 000°0§ sousbyjely; sseuisng pue ABeie.s “10jeaIpUl SiL oy Bumiewyousy siqeiAe ou Ajussino s sy |
; Aju 1

*_ i 0007001 m_uwm €29'18 | ZIe'zie | eev/Lz - - c = xom:rmz_,

F 00005t ] [ s n n na n K

. 2 RIS g SRR 3 (srwoK g 151

| - 000'002 Z | ® = g = g |8 puan uue) Buc
; 000052 Latal
|sum

9A0 8189 4O 8sN eu) Bulio}UOW JO POYISW JBYIouE. OS[e S| Yalum pepiroid areo SIYBIU JO JoquInu By} Uj UORONPSI BU} SSIEASUOLISP Blep ey

Z1-Bny

-

ZL0r  zine  zi-Ae
iy 5 3

Zi-Ky  Zi-ew  Zi-God

ﬂ.

- 000'v1
- 000'91

000'81

JuUdLIWIO) 9oIMISG

"pues} Buiseaioep e s| aley) sleum Yluow e Uely ss9 Jo} Jele pedooj Useq pey

OUM Jeye pe)oo| &g 0} pesead Oym uaJp|Iyo episBuoye 1e peX00] st einsesus siyj -
"Se0p @InseaL S|U) YoM Yluow ey} Buunp jeye poMo0|

8q 0} BuiseeD Jo Jeye psxoo| Buloosq usIp(Iyo s1nided 10U pinom usipjiyo Jsye
PEXOO[ 4O 18qUUNL 8} SE HIOM JO SWINJOA B} HOBI} O} paonpoJul sem JoJesipu; Siyy
NG paJojuow si LpuoL sy} Jo Aep 3sB| U3 UO USIP|IYD JoYe PaX00| 1O Jeguinu ayj -
"{r29°06)

teef 1se| swn swes ey; ueyy lomoj Apueaiiubis s £z9°18 1o ainByy s1ep o1 Jeak 8y) -
"Yiuouwr snojasud

8y} uo umop Aybiis ‘6Lz ‘gL sem Jsnbhy uj esed ul sAep Jo Jequinu [ejo1 8y -

_ usWIUio) oUBWIIOIe

61g'oL | 60e'94 | cio'oL | osz9L | zec'ok | ose'sy | eezier >®m:_hm:_

x| (stquous g 15|
| e 2 puen juesey

B
Bl
Zi-Bny
ZL-p.
cl-unp

.m | 3 L
8

zl-lep

gi-a9o4

o

(owioy 1e peoeid Buipnjoxg) ares Ul ussq sAeY ualpliyo shep oN [B10)  85¥dO

gjgissod se a1ep /J ;




Page 13

Lc

s

€HZI0Z iz

wn..

L1002

gt

%0

%S

%04
%St
%02
%52
%0€
%SE
%0¥

sjgissod se s1ep

0] dn pue aj8/dwod se S| Blep BupBuIgOUS] jeY) Sinsus o) Buiueds Em.EcQScm J8inBas exespLn

sousbie1y] ssauisng pue ABs:

gejieAe ou Ajusiino si sy

BIIS "1018OIpUI S|U] 10} Bupietuyousq &

& | woe | wee | - = = - - _ 18808 ; A

peY |%o0ee| %ose| woee| - - - - fobuirey)
TN o K Fiss Y| n TN 3
...HJ.\ S S e 7 T m = > (seok 9 5m)|
M.W e R W 1 X .ma . puen uus Buo|
b R A = h

‘(sxeeIg 13yl0 / sAepijoy / suonebey

Ieyeaib e ofeurw o} Wey) Hoddns o} sieied Jelsoy Joj uejd Buures ino Burzepdn osfe ale ep “se0inoss
UoIum jeurd $82In0S8Y Je Peiopisuod MOU eJe seioluedeA BuLelsoy |y
01 8|qe JOU 8le oYM BSOY} BUIMBIAS] AJUSISISUOD IO SBPN|oUl SIY "SI8IB0 18150} 9SNOY-Uj JO 8sh ay} esiLu

"sjdoed BunoA pue ueip)iyo jo sbuel
4 [BUISIU JO UOBEBSIWIXBW 8INSUS |jIM
e} ewilt Jo pouad Jioys e 1oy 48150}
IXew o} usyenspun Buleq s| Mo

LRew  zi-dv  Zimew Zi-aed

JUSWIWOD B82INIBS

‘Pajou ueeq osje sey (1snbny ul L8| 0} Judy Ul Z0g Woly) uondope 1o} peseld asou;
PuE susweoe|d 2180 19}SO} 8SNOY Ul JO JequUINU 8U} Ul UoRonpa. v “jlidy Ul 89S O
N0 20g 03 paiediliod ‘snbny ul uoisiold AsBulieH Ui elem UBIp|IYO gFS JO N0 Lg) -

- = o ——t %0 1ebrel 948¢ aUy1 mojeq
£ o | o llem sutews. pue Jlidy souls pauljoep sey uolsinold AsBuiieH uj efejusoisd ayj -
e WBWILIOY @oUBWmIORd
F %S1 T 5
@ | %9c | %ec | %ee | wsc | %ee | %se | wee _I“ 1eBip febue;
%02
b %se P3Y | %0°ee | %22 | %6’ Le | %8'Se | %9'SE | %eve | %y se fobuuey
F % el > I e —
\Mm mm £ = ,W 13 M g ma (syiuow o i)
- %SE 3 ..I- [ A i " * 1] 1 P 1
=5 =Ty S i | e = pualy uzwuom__.
%0 : : :

uoisinold Asbuuey ur peoed usippys jo obejusoiayg ZEAH

S

i



Page 14

8¢

T R

£LZL0T 20T 110102

oyt

%08 eqissod se arep

oo 01 dn pue s1e|dwod sk S| B1ep BupiewyoUSg 1BYI SINSUR 0} BUILUEDS JUSWUOIAUS Jejnbal eNeLspuUn
qu sousBijplu] sseuisng pue ABejens “Jojeolpul Sy 10§ BUBHBUILOUSY S|qE|BAR OU Ajusino st essy |
0

o8 @® | %56 | %o | wuse | - - : = 1o Aebuiipy
%88

%06 - Aobuuey
%26 T o fo 10 =

%5 1 m ,mn o ek u.ﬁé_“
%96 | '§ |S| puenuue; m...o.__
%86 - -

‘%001 yoeas 03 Buials
lins e1e em poob si ainby Juessid ey IsiIYm “poied Aepijoy [0oyos pue oidwA|o auyy BULNP SHISIA UeulewWw O} pey Po)IOM B8D1AISS BU) Ul JjB1S
UBWWOY 8oInIeS

@oueuLIoped 0} pallou Ussq SBY SiU} aieum

8[eosawWl AJYIUOW € USIPHIYD YSU JOMO] 1O} 4O B[BOSSLUN 3OOM g B U0 Paseq S| siy] -
"1oBIe} %56 24} 8A0qE ‘elep 0] dn eJe SYSIA 818D U USIP|IUD JO %596 -

1USUILIOY) 9UBWIIONS g

Zi-Bay  zinr ziunr zi-Aew gLy Zi-ew

%0

%0C
%0y %SE | %SE | %6 | %6 | %56 | %6 |em 1088 Aebuier
202 %.L'96 | %88 Asbinieyy
%08 TR0 PEEDetons v : :
%00+ ...Zp of SR pus1 jua08y
- %0ZL , : ' ;
(ereosewn yoom g sy UM PeIB|dLIOD 210M YoM NP SUSIA JO %) SYSIA ®1eD W URIPIYD  2eEdo

Ty T S Ry e ey




Page 15

6¢C

ELZLOZ  ZUWLL0Z  L1/0L0Z

0} dn pue slejdwoo se sy eiep Bunyiewyousy Jey; ainsus o} Buuueos uswuosaue tenbei oxenapun

sjgissod se sjep

“I o -

_ . * 05 soueh[elu| sssuisng pue ABereng “Joreoipul sy o) Bupprewyoueq sigeeae ou AlueLino st aiey |

_ A 004 Aluo b i

I o ereq 9 e £¥e - sBune(|
L] ny 15 N n n n

g 002 — o

! L) =2 = 2 m m m .mn

ﬂ e S L B

, s s o = o 8 9

"Alrendoidde pesn eJe sessesold Unoo sinsus o} sBuj
SY3 Y& palojuow s} aunbBy siy| “Jeak ise] poued sLues sy 0} pasedwos panss sb

193W seliuey pue USIplIYD pue sedInRg [BbsT ief Ajuow
ulpseo0Id 8B JO Jequinu sy} Us UooNPe) B usaq sey sisy)

usWwo) adAeg i

uiod siyy Aq psienui sBuipessoid sles €6 8U} Uy} Jemoj st anby s1ep o3 Jeek ey -

Ul 29 pue isnbiny ui pereniul alem sBuipeeoocid ales SI8UM UBIP|IYD || siem slay] -

“Jeah 1s®)

"alep 01 12af ey

uswIwon) [IuRWIOLDd

|
et | 6t | oz | e 5 ook wwmmwmﬂv
o e >
Fls |88 |% |
oy = = == =
Ao i —
eleq Lt 61 R cl 6 £ A >®m::m£ m
= > o {2 z o 5 ¥ |}
.W M .m w m M .W 3 w. ..ma {suioul g ﬁma.w
LETR T o 09 AR el e e i e

L I R s

(uaIpIY2 Jo "oN) —pereniu; sBuipescoid siey  1pdo L



Page 16

0Le

sjqissod se s1ep
0} dn pue sjeidwon se s| e1ep BupjiBwysUSy 1Y) 2insue o) BuLLEDS uswiuolAUS Jembsl a¥eLepUn
PousBifjeju) sseuisng pue ABe1eAS “101BoIPU| SIY 10} BUBLEWLOUSG sigefiear ou Ajusuno sy e1ay]

"Buissiul se papiodsd a1e oym usIpUD Lo saiepdn Apissm
8ABY SOQ PUE Jequisiu pes| 8y "sjustusde|d Jiey) o} pauinial Ajpjes mou eaey s|dosd BunoA 858U} JO U0 Inq jje pue uosiad BunoA syy
YUM J0BILIOD SABY OM SBSBD JSOW U| "SINoY g JOA0 Jo pollad e 1o} Buissiw alem Buissiul Jusm oym ajdoed BunoA g1 3U} JO O 1snBny Buung

JUSWILLOY) 9DIAIeS

"JUSISISUOD Alfe} paulewal Sey YIuow! suo UBy)

sJouws Ut Buissiw euob eaey yoym usipjud eeondnp 3pN{oul 10U op pue polied yjuow
€ 8U Ul BuISSIL 8UOB aABY OUM USIPIIYD JOHLIOU YoIuMm slequinu Apspenb sy -
ZIBN 71084 “Ieaf ise| oUW SIL USSS [ns| BU} O} JejiuilS S) BuissIL U2IpIIyo 10 Jequuinu ayj -
ﬁ 0 "HIUoW aY1 Jo pus ay3 1e @Emm_Em
" psurewal ¢ pue 1snfiny Jo yuow syi Bupnp e1es wouy BuIssiw siem usIpliyo g -
luswuIoy) edueulIoNsS

Tidew g~y

-9

[ Ao i
Lo ereq 9l el ch el ot 9 L >mmc:mﬁ
x4 =
> — . = -
- vl A_HHM & £ s m .W m.r_ﬂ & .mn (sqiuou g jm)!
Loy =3 = o ~ o b (o S 1 ucwowm__
aL g el L ENEY

Yauows ayy uj uiod AUe Je 8180 WOl papuossqe/Bulssiw uaIpjyo Jo PquInN 61y dO

v



Page 17

3%

ewzioz  ZHioZ LH0L0Z  QM600Z
- = -

%0

r %0
F %0y
r %09
F %08
; r %004
_ %021

N T s ety

—

- - - %P6 | %36 | %ES uopyo|

& | wae | uwes | ues - = %6 106081 AoBiny

US8ID 1%1¥8 | %599 | %88 | %i't6| - > febuuey
» n n n ™ n

s g i S m m g (s1e0 g 150))

=S ) AR S S 3 puen uue) buo|

"AjAnosdsoiel syjuow esey; 1oy spodal uni o3 apew Jim sidwsye ‘1osuiooU] sle sanbly Z10g Aepy pue judy
OU4a eyl sUesW SiY] "9%6'g6 [BUOISIAId st 8InBy Isnbny jo pus eyl “elep syl sepiroid yalym pods. PSs1je00] B Polesio @AY 9AIRS oY

!

2Bzt ziune zike  zidv gzl Zi-ged

- = r— t %0
%04
- %0z
I %0€
%0%
b %08
L %09
I %0L
F %08
= — | %06

%004

UBWIWIOD B0IASS

“uodn panoidwil 8q UeD (98} SOIAISS U UOIYM %6 JO 8anbByy

[euoisiroid e ueAIb sey Buiiodsl Joj weisAs pasyeo) e passnosip Ajsnoiraid sy-
'POAOSS USS] JOU SABY S8NSS| SWIOS INQ Japiroid sy yym Bupriom aie epy
“SMeinei 1o} elep 8y siind Jeyy Hods) wasAs syl yum wejqold e useq sey syl -
; JUSWILIOD edUBUIIoNSY

@ - © | %B6 | %6 | %I | %6 | %I |e 196ie 1 Aabuiie
usely) (%eze| - S %LY8 | %LV8 | %G99 | %989 KeBuuey
mm TS E RS A = F (w1t g 1sv)|
e T M G o B o puss edey,

soleosawi painbal uiyim vasa_.>2 SIOM UDIYM Seses aled ul usipiy) wwmn_op




Page 18

= IS Y PRI e 0

002 2019002

O SN h K A 1 A 4

€4Z102

giniez

LHOLOZ A
m—t %0 = S %400 %S L %L | %R L %e D puebuz
1 o
%
il = - - %YLl %iiL | %L wLeL | @ uopuo
3
%9 = T BEOL{ %LTL | %Y 0L | %S0L | %52 | W SINOGUBIGN [ROISIISG
%8
@ | 911 %ot | %o | %Ll = %21 -
%0t
%Z) : SESGL %8'YI AebuueH
%¥L [T ALY {
; g 7m . (smokgase)
Fisd _.wm.__., puen uuey uco.__
%81 - - 2 ="

c—\_m:Cﬂ_c TICT Pue UTaUT T
LIoJUl IIM YoIyMm senss| pue spussy Ajjuepl pue sjusweoe|d sy Hoddns Jeyung 0} Jeploul SeAoW Jeyuny Jo ysi oq Aeu oym pue ssaoul
uswaoe(d g ey SABY OUM UBIPIIYO 09 JO MeIASL B PIP Wes)] eouenssy Aljent BuipienBees oy “ebeis e|gissod 1s8iiee 8y} 18 umopNRelq
Ul ynsa ybIw zey swejgold Bunueneid jo wie sy UM ‘BANoE0Id PUE SJBWISAS BI0W S| SIBPIACI JO BuuRuowW 8y} eyl 8insuS 01 MIom
Bupfepispun eie ep "spesu wiie} Buo| s,plIYo € SIepisuod ueld Yoes Jey] PUB 8IED OJUl SOW0D 11y phyd suy ulod ey 1e Juswsoeld 1BL sy)
106 am ‘s|qissod se Jey Sk Jey} S| wie 8y "Iesed e yim uosied Bunok 1o piyo e yoleus o} peoderd 1589 e.e om JeyiaBol ey} Jopio ) siepiroid
O} V] 843 WOy UoRewliojul 8piaoid YoIym SJUSWINOOP 8y} PUE [UBH $90IN0SeY 2} O 8|0l oY) dojersp 0} suop ueaq sey 3lom mechm__
JUSWIWCY) 92IAIeS

"1snBny 18 se %l Jo £/) Buisesiou

8q 0} sieadde pue pexoes os[e S| SjusWeor|d OM1 YIIM USIpYD 1O lequinu ayy -
: (Li/oL0z

%o |40} %E°01) sinoquBlsu [BO1SIIELS INO JO [9A8] BY} pUNOIE pue 1ebie) BUL UIYIM S] SiUf -
Ieah

Ise| 8y} ul sjuswaoe|d SJOW JO € PRY BABY UBIPIYD J8le PaNOO| (3501) 1S 4O 1o 56 -
% ; JUSIIWOY S2UBLIIOHS ]

%T

%9

%LL | %L} %LE | %LE | %el 1ebip Asbuiey

%8

%86 %901 | %20t Asbuuep

%04

%zt | (wwowgise)

. puesn jusocey

%¥l

SIAOW JO JBqUINU :UBIPJIYO Jo}E Pod0o] Jo syuewserld Jo AlpqeIS Z9AH )

S ey BT i

U3 Ul UsBq SABY OUM Sieeh G'Z ISBS| 1B IO} 8180 Ul USBq AR OUM ua.piiyo e
Jo ebejueoied ey seAlf Jl ‘uswaoe|d Jo yibus| sy} Lo peseq s (£9dQ) enseauwl puooss syl ‘ZL0Z AN 01 L10Z sunp "6'e 12a4 Buyjjos e 10} slojeiey
ale umoys sainbij ey)) JeeA 1se] sy Buunp sjuswese(d alow Jo 801U} PrY 8ARY OYm UIp|iyo jo ebejussiad auyy seAIB ) ‘peousiedxe SEY LOYoD 8t

Ul pIyo yoes siswiesed Jo Jequinu ey uo pased s| (ZOAH) 111 SUL "usipjiyo Jsye pexoo] Jo sjuswede|d Jo Alljigels syl 0} aleje. Seinseall asoy |




Page 19

2.13



Page 20

4x4

s = T | %999 | %rL9 | %299 | %059 | %ere | B pu(oss | |
MM.“. e c T | %999 | %069 | %899 | %979 | @ uopuo] M

2 .

%08 - - %BY'0L | %ELI | %4789 | %E0L9 | %59 _4; SINOQuOIAN PRIsIEIS “

:

i ® | wos | war | wes | %os | %9 | war | - e _

HMM %989 | %OZL | BO'SL| BEYS | %229 | %069 .,mmmc__m: M

‘Buluueld s1es 100d Jo eojoyo
juelee|d JO YOB] JO JNSSJ B 10U 918 SSAOW SU} JBy} 8INSus O} SpesU edInes By "juslledeld usueuLed s1ow wis) Buo] e 0] Juswieor|d wisl
Hoys e woly erowl peuue(d e s|duiexs 1o} ‘suosesl salsod o) Jusweorld AOW ABLL UBIP|IYO SOSED BIOS Ul 1ey) peroedxs st ) "siuswisoe|d

j0 sulened ey pue peiosyE USIP(IYD BY) PUBlSISPUN O} WES) SoueuLopad 8y} Woll spodsl Ag peisisse ‘ediales 8yl Aq Aemlspun sy 3i0p
; JUBWIWIOY 9oIAIRg

‘abrisAe nogybeu

[eonshels moleq Apublis pue %z, Jo 1ehie) ay) uey) J8MO| S| BoUBLIIOMS Y -

(L10Z 38nBNY 12 £p 1L yum

paisedwod z10z 1snbny 1e /g1) Buisesioul usaq aAeY siesh §'g Jo) 8led Ui siequunu
8yl ybnouie 010z Jequisides eouls usaq sey } 188MO] 8 1e si eBeiusoiad sy} pue
t %0 snid siesf Z Joj Jusweoe|d ewes sy Ul ueIp|yo ur euloep Apeeis e uesq sey sy -
%ol "s1eaA g 1se9) Je Io) Jusweor|d suwes oy} Ul Usaq sABY sigeh
§'¢ 10} 8leo Ul Useq sABY OuMm (LYoo /81 JO INO $Z1) 9L JSPUn Usip|iyo 10 %£7°99 -|

Zi-ky  Zi-ew

i

{

|

%02 1

JuslUWo)) edueULIoldg |

%08 |

wr | @& | %as | wel | wes | wes | wel | wzs 1068 Aebuipy M

%08 | pod |9%e99| %70 | %6ee | %Ll | %ol | %e0s fobuiery| |
%09 _ ; -

i, L < U 4o

%02 mﬂ _ aW ol = I .W ; M (suwouws g yse) |

| i ] S s R Puen juscey, i

%08 - : m

|

ewaeld jo yifus) :ualIp[iys Jeye paxoo) o syjuewesed jo Ayjigels cgdo .\

S SRR




Page 21

D R s D S

1S8.1e Io} JuBLIEM O 8NP YONO} Ul JOU o ‘peisneyx3 Jeaddy jo sIyBiY |y ©ABY O3 pURO} 10 APOISNS Uj pley 1Byl aleym sweiBUI SIL)
Buninp uonepowILIooo. B|qeYINS Ul JOU 819M JBU} 9SO} JBAGMOY ‘SJED Ljim psieidielul 89 0} SPeBU BIEP S10J018L)} PUE |[BWS S18 SISqUINU B L
JUSLILIOY) BDIAISS

ZiBMy  Zinr zinr zifew  ziedv Zl-eW Zi-ged .
i T I i R i g ° "UOHBPOWOSOR S{geINS Ul 8lem 1snbny ul 81es Ys] oym ejdoed Bunoh ¢ 10 o z-
: ‘190181 94,56 E 1sulebe ‘UoiepoLoISe
[0z SIqeNNS U| 8lem 81ep 0} leaA sy} 1o S1eAes| 8189 10 (87 JO N0 / L) %l -
by uawwo) ssurwIOpad
r 7o
F %09 18648 Asbulmny
L 908 Asbuireyy
- %00t  (swwow 9 15w)
%02t -

UONEPOWLWOTIE B|qeNNs Ul S1oAes| o1e)  JpidQ

S PR R TS “ A
: ’ 0

m..:umom ZU110Z LHOL0Z ,W\moo.m i _ R %06 | %06 | %06 | %ee puebuy

F %02 - - - - %88 | %06 uopuoy

F %0F : - - %c6 | %16 %68 %6 N RONSHENS

F %08 %56 wiiey Aebuieis

| 508 S Kobuuey

A 3 e o AL o ralTF i

= %001 W oo (asekgnee)

A= ucnh::o.u:o..“

%02} & ; |

e Pl T KO N D a0 polr e o ooy

“ajdoad BunoA Joy Loisinoid siqepioye

PuUE 81n08s ‘afes sapinoid I )i 8jqenns PaWesp §I UOBPOLILIOIDY "UDHEDOWIWO0O® 8|deNsS Ul 10 |33 Ul S Pajunos og Jouues Asy) 9sIMIBY10 a1ed Buiaes) jo
SUIUOW Inoj ulyym peysiiqelse Ut oq 0} spesu patiaouod ajdosd BunoA suj Jo sniers oU] "81ed yum pajeudisiul 8q piNoys pue siequiny jetus uo psseq alojeleyl
a1e Jo1eoipu siy} Joj sebejussted Ajlyjuow "£1/2L0Z Ul 61 tung 0} anp a.e sjdoad HUNOA Gg {YUOW 8Y] Ul g1 UIN] oym sjdoad BunoA uo peseq aie sainsesul 988y




Page 22

%0

%0+
%02
%0E
%0t
%09
%09

%02
%08

%06

- - | %19 | wze | %eo | %so | %ee | O puribuT
= = = %49 | %S9 | %89 | %99 |@ uopuo]
- - weo | weo | wo9 | %z | %ee |w sinotybroy %x_.ﬁ:w\rw__
@ | %08 | %9s | wss | wes | %z | wzs | - s 10818 Aeburien
PoY | %0L | %bo %S9 | %l | %89 | %89 foBuuey|
TELAREE L e R
283 e 3 pues e Bucy

€ 0} 8NP YyoNno} Ul jou 10 J1 3 ou yum Apoisno ul ‘313 4oy 9]

qiblie Jou 10jeIsU) PUB JdHN ‘peisneyx3 Jeeddy Jo SIUBIY iy Burey 01 enp sauy
SEeM siU) swel) Wi siyy Bulinp 313 ) J0u esoy 19Aemoy ‘sleo yim pejeidiei) aq o3 spesu EIBP 8] ©i0J2IaU) pUE jleWS 2J8 SiaqgLunu ey L]

|

1sele io) ucmtw\s,_

Zie gy CZEW Ziged

%0t
%09

%08

%001

b %02t

USLIWIOY BdIAIeS

'sinoqubieu [eonsiiels uum Ajgeinoae; sereduwios ainBy sy -
1ebIel 9%08 a1 mojeq “(133) Buiuten o yuswfoidwe
‘uoneonps U] 24em (%/9) SI9AES)| BIED £F JO N0 91 1snBny jo pus sy} 1e sV -

1USUIWGY) 9ouUeUIIOa

® | %08 | %08 | %08 | %08 | %08 | wes | wos |- 19618 febuien:
pay %19 | %.S | %L9 | %00L | %S. | %00l | %wog Aobuiey
E 2 g sl Bl E e 3 (o 9 ysu),
St dLR = s & puen juseday

]

Buien o Juewkojduse ‘uonesnpe uj sieAesj alen

syido )
; e

N

i
!
!
H
3




Page 23

e

e

vt

7)

{Ajuo suondop)
sunoqubon s

v.v el b - - - - sOog -AsbBuuer) |
>_:O 6 i gl - - 5 & suondopy -Ae8uueu| |
eied 2 . - ) ) i ) pue suoiidopy) >wmﬁw_wm
R
B s sl 8|80 |8 pmimim

‘Buigels

[EUORIPPE SWOS puE PauIeduod Jels 8y} Aq spoye sAnesId ‘Bupiojuow 1o} swis)sAs peaoidul UM peAsiyoe ussq sey Ajijeuoiippe eyl
JUSUIIOY 92IAIRS

CL/LLOT e ul siem aiayy |

uel slow ‘e1ep o1 Jeak ey} Ul s1epio diysueipiend feroads | useq eary eiey] -| ;
“Jeef 1se| uiod siyi 1e sOpS g pue| |

suopdope g yim seJedwod sIy| "SIy} 198 0} YOBI} UO 818 @M pue g S| suopndope
Jo} 1es 1ebie) 8y "1snBny Ui esay) jo | ‘IesA ey Ul suondope § Useq aARY By -
JUBUIWIOY SoUBULIONS]

Ziune  Zikew  ziedy  Zi-ew Zi-aed

- L 3 - 4 sODS -Aofullcy

3 - b - 4 stondopy -AeBunen

R (s0vs!

2 L . 4 pue suoydopy) >wmc:mI|_
sy y

5 .W £ m 2 .w (syuow g 15u)|

1 e ) W A R i e

;chmvmv s19plo diysuelpsenb [eoads jo JequuinN 98l A0
suondope jo JaqunN  egipy dO
siopio diysuerprenb [eads/suondope jo sequinN  gip dO y

R T e

"SWINYNO 8] MaYS UBD SuchelUeA |fews se Buipes|sits aq Aew sejepdn 1ejnbsl 810U - PAAJOAU USIPIIYD JO JBqUINY [feus Alongeras

ay} o1 snp Apeprenb pajepdn Ajuo si sty Jeyl ajou esesld “erepdn Apapenb pressiong uondopy oyl ‘g xipuaddy 0} 1931 aseald ‘s101e91pU) uondope
feuoneu jsure5e aoueuuopad pue elep [enpeluod ‘GuppewYoUSq “elep pusl] uus) Buol Jsyung Jo4 "sseooid uondope sy Jo ssaujjew eyl 0} Bunejel gy
PUE gy ‘LY sioledlpul pJeoalcos uolidope Aey eaiyl eyl uo s1epdn Ajpuow e soplaoid Osfe 1 (SyIuoW gl uiyim paoeid %) uoisioep Aouste ue Buymolo} uoidope
Jo} usIppYd Jalfe Paxoo| Jo siuswede|d Jo sseulfeLl} SU) pue sisplo diysuelprens fejoeds pue suondope jo SUWINJOA 8Y} UC UofBULIONI Sep|ACId UOJID9S SIU |




Page 24

R A S e T DR, R T

eUziI0Z ZYLi02

—+

T

%0
%04
%02
%0€
%0%
%05
%09
%04
%08
%06

S = %L | %eL | %SL | %9/ | %sz @ pueibuy
= g s %BrL | %L | %1l | %SO | @ Yopuo 1
- - %9 | %/9 | %6/ %99 | %89 4, SINOGUEIBN [Polsiply
%82 | %8 | %ss %L s
%95 | %I/ | %e9 | %0s x.H
g1 | TSR e
R g1 8|2

‘8LpdO se sweisks ewes sy Puisn psioyuow Bueq
SI siyL "padeld ale syuow g1 uey Jebuo| payem SABY OUM USIDIIYD jfe [N 18w J0u J6bie), s Junod m uswaeoeld 18y “peceld si pjyo sy
SPiemis)e uoos Moy Jo Buol moy jo ssajpieBal ‘Jew jou S| 1eBie) 8yl ‘pessed eaey syjuo

W g} 8yr eduo se Puibusiieyo surewuss Joyeoipu; si|

ZeBy  zidor zi-unr zikew  zpedy  zi-lepw

%0C

%0

%09

%08

%004

%0TL

lusiwon aoIAIeg

uondope meu a3 Aq pepeoiedns si nq uopew

(L1/0102 Ul %9/)
1S818| MOJRq S| pUe (% L7) 21/1 10 WOl
"uondope 1o} paoe|d eq pinoys Asy 1e

sinoqubleu feonsnels loy erep Bupirewyousg
| souBWIOLed Ul auloep € sjuesaidel siy] -
Ui UoIsioop a8yl Jo syuow gL uiyym uondope
10} paoe|d alem (9496) usippyo Jeye P8X400j 6 40 1IN0 G 1snbny 0] Jeak ey u) -
"MOJ8q PS1S]] SI0IBDIPU) PIBDSIODS
104Ul 1o} pepn|oul s Jojeoipuy mE

1

usurno) adurULCUD 4

%9/ | ™=

) s s - Y,
%001 | %0G %19 - - - %08
18 e 5 E|2]58 (7 ;
e o ™ = o ~ ~ 0o

uondope 1o}

S O s PP N7 s

paseid eq pnoys pliys oy 1eY) uoisioep Asuabe ue Bumoljo} uondope 10} UaIp[Iyo Jeye paxooj jo sjuswesed Jo sseulewi|




Page 25

612

B N O Do P e pas s

%
pueibuz
sunogybon _ N _ _ _ - : OUSSIL | BLG!
v onsyeig| @ 689 _...,l proyssay] eus:
yAZA 6¢. Asbuuey p3ay 2cl Shs vel 9¢g/ 989 = = KobButiey
A ——— !
L] na ha n na 3 n
21-6002|  11-800% e W ) 2 2 2 m m g m mn
i i Ieaf 901 = e = g 3
. b i i B e S B e

‘8vE Sl epeul g 0}

uotsiosp syl 1o} shep abelene 8y "skep Qsp s| Jequisideg 1s| ou; Je s URIp|ILo eseuy o} Jeye paxoo] sAep ebeisAe sy; pue Jesk siyy epew
UoISIosp aU) pey eABY 61 USIP(IUD L9 8Ul JO uolidope Jo} paoeld ussq eABY eS8 JO | ‘Isnbny jo pue sy je se peroidde useq sey uondope
Joy uejd ssoym usIp|iyo L9 aJe ssey] “Juswoeoe(d Jusuewsd Jo uolEoiUspl 0] JepIo Jusweoe(d B JO JustusABIydE Sy} Usemieq JeBie] Uiuow
€ [eSieAluN & O} BUPLiOMm 8le 80IAISS BU} AJJUBLING USIPIYO MeU 10} ployseiyy Aep 689 auy duisino o} Wile UB Yum We)sAs ay1 ol Buiuioo
UBIPJIYO Mau ey} pUe WLISAS e} Ui Apesdle Usipjiyd ey} Jo JUnoode Bupiey AeBuiieH o} oyveds s1ebie; Bumes Je Bunjoo] ele sointes sy

JUSURLIOY) 9ONISS

€UZLOZ  ZULLOZ  LHOWZ  0L600Z  60/800Z :
"USIPIIYo MaU o} pouseiy) Aep geg ey diisino o) wie

U YIm wisisAs suj} ojul BUILLIOD USIP(IUS MeU Byl pue WelsAs sl Ul Apeelie usippyo; |
dU1 Jo Junocooe Bupjel AeBuiiel o} oypeds s1ebiel Bumpes Je Bupjoo| aue ooimies ayy -| |

002

009

‘org)

o8 PIOYSS.u} [BUOREU BUY UBLL JeN8q SABp | /G Y00} 1snBny Ut peldope pjiyo auo ey -/
| 000° 'shep gLz jo bl z1/1 10z oy !
j TS S e snroqe Ajyblls pue £10z-0L0Z 10} Sjens) Ploysa.iys reuoneu Uo peseq si Uolym (sieek ¢ |
Bunjo) 386123 Aep 6eg auy @r0de SI SIYL “Z10Z 1SNBNY 0} jLdy pouad syy Jo) shep zz/| !
sem uondope lo} peoeld Buleq 0} 18ye peyoo] Bupiooeq wouyy shep ebelene ay] - w
UBUILOYD S3UBULIOHa g w
i
> i
! @ 689 | 669 | 689 | B9 | 660 - - e _ woysaiy) jpuciey| |
w pay 145 | s08 | 689 | WN | iel - - Aobuiey m
5 ' {
P (e s ey F g
EEME T B SR e e puen jusosy |
L] L) n o n L\ | !
, . |
| (uondope Joy peoeld ueipjiyo sepnjoxe 1) W
; Auo usipiiyo psidope o} seefel aanbiy siy , <1V Joredtpy| pressioos uondopy) _,
J

poued u pejdope uaipjiys oy uondope 10} peseid Buseq oy eye payoo| Buluiossq wioyy skep aberony  ©8VAH L




Page 26

R T PRI e e e e

TSI

%86 pugjbug

sunogybpp

K1 [BOUSHEIS

%Ly %Lt AoBuuey
21-6002 1-8002 pURIGAR
w . Ieoh sauyy

- 1
@ %8S - - - - = - _..l wehuey puosiacig| |,
PBH | %Sy | %05 c = = = - KebBuuey A
L) b3 na o na no : i
b S =] =] =
S = = 2 = _
g RS m & | 2| & 8] peauebioy ||
2 w S o ] & & S |
i

ulisisse [im sbuneew Bupjul| uoidope pue Buoel Aousueuiied ybnouyy Aupnuos y
wedwt jiim yoiym ‘payy

Sypiow Lz uiynm uondope Jo 19bie) oy Buiasiyoe
ustusBeueU PSsesIOU| "IOYRIPUl SIL} UO Apanisod
HuUsp| Usaq ey sjuslueoeld Woym 1o} ‘seigeq paysinbujjel ¢ pue usip|iyo Bunok Aisa 0 Jequinu e ale a9y syuow
L2 ulyum peoeld ebeusaied ayy uo Aleanebeu sioeduwi yoiym suwi aWIOS 40} 18YJE PSXOO] USS] BABY OUM UBIPILO S8PNjoUI speW SusWsoed
§O SUWINIOA POSEaIoUl BY| "BLUY) 8|qRISPISUCD BLIOS 10} Jee PeXoo| Useq pey polied el SY3 uy uondope 4o} pade|d UBIPIYO BY} JO JSqUNU Y

€HZLoz ZL/1302
o -

£ %0

F %0} i
L %0z
L ooe I
F o0 5
- %08
- %09

by zZime zi~unp

%0

r %0l
F %02
- %0g
F %0¥
%08
I %09

JUBWILIOYD 9DIAleS

JeuolEu 8Ly Uo pesed) 19b.1e) Jeuoisinoid ey mojeq si SIY| “isye paoo| Bujwiooeq Jo
Syiuow |z uiym Uondope o) pedeld esem UsIpiyo (22 Jo 1o 01) %GY 18BNy 18 sy-

(eBelone

JUBUWIWGS esurULICag

@ %8G | %8S | %8G | %8S | %8S - - Wl- 18018 | {PUOISIACIY
i

POH | %Sy | %Iy | %Iy | %8s | sy - - KoBuuey

g =3 e o e 38 TR AT i _

= = T b N R A VA S puei wedey,

" hs na o ] o o |

%0L

%04

“PeIEQIpUl Yuow 8y jo pus

8U1 e se seunby elep o} Jeak ale umoys saunbi4 “uondope Jo}
peoe|d UsIp|iyo pue usip|iyo pejdope o} sejesd 2inby sy ,

.{EV Jo1RO1PU| PIRDBIOOg uondopy)

lelje payjooj Buiwossq jo syuow 1z unpim uondope 1oy peseld  ggydo L



Page 27

(244

4O JSquunu 8L} SE UMOP BLIOD [|IM SIGUINU 8y oM Ajiuey dn Bulpeeds ele soInoses [eUORIPPE puE SWalsAS BuLio}uOW “168dO Uum sy

"peoe|d ale sl BUO| B pajem Apesije sABY OUM USIPIUS

zel puejbuz
sinoqybenN

et feonsuels
662 AsBuuey
o obeloae
+i-800¢ 1eah sa1y)

a—

* Ue 0] yorew e uo Buipioep ALioyine jeso) ayl pue v__:u e a2e|d 0} Auoyine unos Bumeses Auoyine {e00] B UsOMIaq sl obeiony

WBWWOY 2dIA18S

. ‘oA Aloyine

{B00] J& elep Buises|ol SSYOL4YD UO UElfel S| J01BIIpUI SIU) UO Sseifoid Buninsesyy -
‘Ploysaiyl auy jo Loys sAep gz si AeBuriey

SISAS| 11-800¢ U0 peseq os ‘sAep g1z S| £1-01L0g 404 Ploysaiy} [euoheu By -
‘Aliwey eandope ue yym Buiyoyew pue plyo e 8oe|d 0} Alioyine Lnoos

Buinieoe Ajoyine jeoo) sy wous sAep 6eg s! {1 1-8007) obelone Jeok ¢ s, AeBuney -
: , JUSWILIOY) BOUBWIOHS Y

(eV 101e01pU] pressioos uondopy)
(skep) Ajiute; sandope

oo

O




Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



N Page 29 Agenda Item 8

=

Haringey

Reportfor: | 20 ory Committee | Number:

Title: Academic Progress Report for Haringey Children in Care 2012
Report Debbie Haith

Authorised by:

Lead Officer: Attracta Craig — Head of Virtual School

Ward(s) affected: Report for Key/Non Key Decisions:

1. Describe the issue under consideration
To report to Members on the progress and results for Children in Care at the end of
Reception, Key Stages 1, and 2 and 4

To update Members on the progress of Haringey’'s Undergraduates/Graduates and
new University Entrants

To update Members on developing work in raising the attainment of Children in
Care

2. Cabinet Member introduction
Haringey Council aims for the children and young people in its care to be successful
in education and be equipped with life tools to make appropriate choices to

progress through education and into employment.

3. Recommendations

4. Other options considered

5. Background information
Page 1 of 8



Page 30

X

7
Haringey
5.1. Summary of the education attainment Haringey Children in Care.

5.1.1 GCSE results 2012
Year 11s in care for a year prior to 1st September 2012

There were 45 young people in care in Year 11, i.e. in care as of Sept 1% 2011.and were
still in care at the point of taking examinations.

All references to ‘GCSEs’ includes qualifications equivalent to GCSEs.
The results for 2012 are:

5+ GCSEs at grades A*-C incl. English and Maths : 20.5% (9/44)

5+ GCSEs at grades A*-C : 36.4% (16/44)
5+ GCSEs at grades A*-G : 52.3% (23/44)
1+ GCSEs at grades A*-G : 79.5% (35/44)

Other qualifications 1 11.4% (5/44)

No qualifications
SEN

Comparing with similar previous Year 11 cohorts

£ 9 % (4/44)
- 21% (9/44)

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Number of young
people 40 48 48 49 44
16.7% 12.3% 20.5%
5A*-C with Eng & N/A N/A
Maths (8/48) (6/49) (9/44)
22.5% 31.3% 31.3% 18.4% 36.4
5A*-C
(9/40) (15/48) | (15/48) (9/49) (16/44)
47.5% 52.1% 37.5% 36.7% 52.3%
5A*-G
(19/40) | (25/48) | (18/48) | (18/49) (23/44)
62.5% 66.7% 66.7% 65.3% 79.1%
1A*-G
(25/40) | (32/48) | (32/48) | (32/49) (35/44)
Young people with 35% 25% 27% 22.4% 22.7%
Statements
(14/40) | (12/14) | (13/48) | (11/44) (10/44)

Page 2 of 8




Page 31

X

=

Haringey
(more detailed information in Appendix A)

This is a strong set of GCSE results. These young people have benefited from additional input
during their time in secondary school. The focus of additional support was to enhance their
learning opportunities outside of school hours and to emphasise the importance of a learning
household. The maijority of young people engaged with at least one of the following:

- 10 hours After school hours home tuition in English or Maths per year

- ‘Big Green Envelope’ to help them build their own ‘libraries’ and support the

learning environment with foster carers.

- SAM-Learning, an online revision programme

- University taster days

- Weekly Study Club — local academic support

- Cooking Club through Tottenham Hotspur Foundation (THF)

- South Africa project in partnership with THF (4 young people)

5.1.2 Early Years Foundation Stage Scores 2012

The Early Years Foundation Stage Profile (EYFSP) is the statutory end of year assessment tool for
children reaching the end of the Early Years Foundation Stage before they transfer to Year.

There were 21 children in care of ‘Reception’ age, during the academic year 2011-2012.

Children who achieve an total scale score of 78 or more across the EYFS profile are assessed as
working securely within the Early Learning Goals. However, to achieve a ‘good level of
development’ a child must also achieve a 6 in all of the seven scales within ‘Personal, social and
emotional development’ (PSED) and ‘Communication, language and literacy’ (CLL). The
expectation is that these children will make national average progress during Key Stage 1.

Achieving a ‘good level of development’ as measured by the EYFSP:
Haringey Children in Care  : 33% (7/21)
All Haringey Children : 57%

3 of children achieved a score of 78 and above, putting them in the middle range. However, they
are not counted as achieving a ‘good level of development’ because of dips in the areas of PSED
and CLL.

Neurological research into brain development now highlights the negative impact of early neglect
and trauma on attachment patterns and language and communication. This commonly manifests
itself in a developmental delay in the areas of ‘personal, social and emotional’ and ‘communication,
language and literacy’ skills. Haringey Virtual School is continuing to work with Haringey’s Early
Years Advisory Service to develop this work and extend understanding on how to effectively
intervene so that the gap between these children and their peer group can be narrowed during
foundation stage and key stage 1.

5.1.3 Key Stage 1 results 2012
There were 17 children in care in Year 2 i.e. in care as of Sept 1° 2011.

The results for 2012 are:

Page 3 of 8



Page 32

X

=

Haringey
Level 2 in English : 82.4% (14/17)
Level 2 in Maths : 82.4% (14/17)
Level 2 in English and Maths 1 76.4% (13/17)
Number of children with Statements : 0%

Comparing with similar previous Year 2 cohorts

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Number of children 11 11 11 14 17
72.7% 90.1% 54.5% 71.4% 82.4%
Level 2 in English
(8/11) (10/11) (6/11) (10/14) (14/17)
81.8% 90.1% 45.5% 57.1% 82.4%
Level 2 in Maths
(9/11) (10/111) (5/11) (8/14) (14/17)
72.7% 90.1% 45.5% 57.1% 76.5%
Level 2 in English and
Maths (8/11) (10/11) (5/11) (8/14) (13/17)
9% 0% 0% 21.4% 0%
Children with
Statements (1/11) (0/11) (0/11) (3/14) (0/17)
9% 0% 0% 7.1% 0%
Children in special
provision (111) (0/111) (0/111) (114) (0/17)

(more detailed information in Appendix A)
This is good set of Key Stage 1 results.
5.1.4 Key Stage 2 results 2012

There were 21 children in care in Year 6 i.e. in care as of Sept 1% 2011.

The results for 2012 are:
Level 4 in English 1 66.7% (14/21)
Level 4 in Maths :47.6% (10/21)

Page 4 of 8



Page 33

X

=

Haringey
Level 4 in English and Maths :47.6% (10/21)
Number who sat SATs : 85.7% (18/21)
Number of children with Statements : 23.8% (5/21)

Comparing with similar previous Year 6 cohorts

2008 2009 2010* 2011 2012
Number of children 22 22 17 28 21
63.6% 50% 52.9% 42.8% 66.7%
Level 4 in English
(14/22) | (11/22) (9/117) (12/28) (14/21)
63.6% 45.4% 52.9% 53.6% 47.6%
Level 4 in Maths
(14/22) | (10/22) (9/17) (15/28) (10/21)
54.5% 45.4% 47% 39.2% 47.6%
Level 4 in English and
Maths (12/22) | (10/22) (8/17) (11/28) (10/21)
18.1% 45.4% 23.5% 17.9% 23.8%
Children with
Statements (4/22) (10/22) (4/17) (5/28) (5/21)
9% 22.7% 17.6% 10.7% 15%
Children in special
provision (2/122) (5/22) (3/17) (3/28) (3/21)

*

2010 results are based on actual SATs results for young people who attended schools not
affected by the 2010 SATs boycott and teacher assessments for those who were.

( more detailed information in Appendix A)

The English SATs results are encouraging with over two thirds achieving national average or
above. The Big Green Envelope, Reading Club, Reading Recovery intervention and training of
foster carers have all additionally supported the improvement of the literacy levels of primary
children in care. Also promotion of reading runs through all of the work e.g. promotion of books at
the cinema event.

The Maths results are less encouraging, and indicate that a closer focus on maths attainment is
necessary to further narrow this gap for children in care. The ‘Games Club’ ran for 6 weeks to raise
the Maths attainment of primary aged pupils. 13 children and their carers attended the club. The

Page S of 8



Page 34

/)r
Haringey
Haringey Maths advisor and Haringey Virtual School teacher ran these sessions, focussing on
‘Understanding pattern in number’. This included times tables, place value, repeated addition and
addition/subtraction relations. Research (National Strategies Primary Research Project, 2010)
shows that these elements can present barriers to basic understanding of Maths. As the Games
Club was well received by carers and children, it will be repeated this academic year. We will

continue to work with the Early Years Advisory Team and the Maths Advisor to support accelerated
progress in Maths.

5.1.5 Post 16 update 2012
Interventions to support education pathways specifically post 16

Links have been developed with IntoUniversity who offer support and advice in regards to
personal statements. We have also had one of our young people selected as part of their
corporate mentoring scheme.

To support the embedding of the post 16 education agenda, guidance is being updated and
reviewed. This includes the Higher Education, Staying Put and the Post 21 guidance. This will
ensure that workers and young people can be clear on entittements and additional support
available in line with statutory requirements.

Funding for young people engaged in education post 16 comes from Government sources in the
form of payments to colleges, student finance and 16-19 bursaries paid directly to young people.
As a local authority we are responsible to provide a minimum of £2000 to support young people in
Higher Education for the duration of their course.

Interventions to support engagement in education pathways specifically post 16

Currently we have 27 young people who are part of the E18HTEEN project which is run by
Tottenham Hotspur Foundation. A further 13 young people are in the process of being recruited.
The project works to support young people who are NEET or have the potential to become NEET.
The project provides the young people with a mentor who supports them to engage in a range of
opportunities in order to gain qualifications, experience and focus. The project was jointly
developed by a member of Haringey Virtual School alongside a member of Tottenham Hotspur
Foundation. Together they secured funding from the Greater London Authority for £190,000 with
each of the London boroughs of Haringey, Barnet, Enfield and Waltham Forest contributing
£20,000 over 2 years and £30,000 from Tottenham Hotspur Football Club. The project started in
June 2011 for 2 years. Work is now being done to seek future funding. HVS Teacher has provided
paid consultancy work developing the project through the first year.

Over the next two years 6 young people aged 18-25 from Haringey will have an opportunity to be
part of the Wilkommen project. This is funded by the European Commission and is being
coordinated by Care2Work. The 6 young people will have the opportunity to take part in work
experience at the Marriott Hotel in Grosvenor Square London followed by 2 weeks at the
Renaissance Hotel Karlsruhe in Germany.

Due to confidentiality constraints in regards to the disclosing of a young person’s care
status, all post 16 education information has to be gathered via Social Worker, Personal
Advisor or young person.

An overview of young people’s level 3 and above educational achievements.
University

Page 6 of 8



Page 35

Haringey

- 6 Young people have graduated from University
- 30 are progressing onto their next year at University
- 8 are starting University September 2012

Level 3 qualifications
- 13 young people in years 13 and 14 achieved a level 3 qualification
- 14 young people in years 12 and 13 have achieved AS-Levels and will
progress onto doing their A levels in September 2012

Further Education information on young people 20+
- 2 young people have achieved an alternative qualification to access
University
- 4 young people have achieved a level 3 qualification.

(more detailed information in Appendix A)

5.2 Strategies to support the educational progress of Haringey Children in Care

Nursery to University:

The booklet has been put together and now updated to support Social Workers, Foster Carers and
Independent Reviewing Officers as they work with other professionals in meetings, specifically
PEPs. This booklet focuses on the range of things that need to be considered during a young
person’s journey through education.

Haringey Virtual School Website:

The website has been updated and reviewed in order to provide additional support and advice to
children, young people and those who work with them. www.haringey.gov.uk/hvs

Carers, schools and social worker used the website to nominate young people for the education
achievement awards.

Partnerships with other organisations:

Providing opportunities for young people to see themselves in new environments and develop
aspirations has been a key contributor to the focus of the work of the Virtual School.

We have linked with the following organisations in order to deliver this as our own funding streams
have reduced.

Tottenham Hotspur Foundation

Since 2004 we have linked with Tottenham Hotspur Foundation on a number of projects
including ‘To Care Is To Do’, a 3 year programme funding by Premier League and Haringey
Council and the ‘South Africa Project’ funded by Premier League and Haringey Council.

The work this year included: the Annual Education Awards Ceremony, this will be the 9"
Awards ceremony; Study Club support; Work Experience for young people; ‘Let’'s get
Cooking’ and on going mentoring contact for those who were part of the South Africa
project.

Highgate Independent School

Young people had opportunities to see inspirational chemistry presentations at Highgate
Independent School, motivating then to be inquisitive learners.

Page 7 of 8



Page 36

X

=

Haringey
Haringey Virtual School has also been part of a planning team to develop an innovative
Chrysalis programme for children in care who had achieved Level 4 or above in their Key
Stage 2 SATS or have the potential to progress into University. In September a pilot day
was run at Highgate for children in years 6 and 7. The day was a great success inspiring
both foster carers and children.

Cambridge University

Young people attended ‘Realise’ days at Cambridge University. Young people in care
seldom consider the possibility progressing to University. The person who lead on this work
is a care leaver who graduated from Cambridge University, She spoke at the 2011
Educational Awards Event giving a motivational talk to the young people. She is now a
Trustee at Who Cares Trust and continues to support our work on the Chrysalis project with
Highgate Independent School.

Kate Cairns Associates

Kate Cairns delivered a conference in July 2010 on the impact of trauma on Children in
Care. She was subsequently impressed with the on-going work of the multi-disciplinary
‘Trauma Working Party’. She is working with us to extend this work.

The DFE interested in the positive impact it could have on behaviour and learning.
Haringey schools are involved in the development of this work.

Kate Cairns will be returning to Haringey in October 2012 to progress this work with
Haringey Schools.

5.3 Developments for the Academic Year 2012/13

The Study club for secondary aged young people in care has been re- located to Tottenham
Hotspur Football Club. Carers and young people have responded very positively to the new
venue. This development is intended to link young people to the extensive programme of activities
operating from the Club in addition to academic support offered through the Study Club

The Annual Education Achievement Awards Event has been run in partnership with the Tottenham
Hotspur Foundation since 2004. This year, the Foundation is leading on the organisation and
delivery of this event.

‘IntoUniversity‘ is a national charity located in Tower Gardens, Haringey. We are pleased to report
that a number of local foster carers have enrolled children for September 2012 onto the
‘IntoUniveristy Academic Support’ for primary aged pupils.

The updated 2012/13 Haringey PEP has to be completed and signed by the school designated
teacher and includes a section on the use of LAC PPG. Joint training, co-delivered by a Haringey
DT and SW, is scheduled to be repeated termly during 2012/13.

The first Secondary Transition Forum specifically for carers of children in care took place

September 2012. In December a similar forum will be held for carers with children who are
seeking a Reception school place for September 2013

Page 8 of 8



Page 37 Agenda ltem 10

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 41 Agenda ltem 11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 45

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	7 Performance Management : children and families
	performance data

	8 Academic Progress report for Haringey Children in Care 2012
	10 Academic progress report for Haringey Children in Care 2012
	11 Progress report following  a recent Ofsted Inspection of a  Council  Children's Home
	Ofsted action plan July 2012 docx mon


